
REGULAR MEETING OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 - 7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 405 JEFFERSON STREET, WASHINGTON, MISSOURI 

SUGGESTED 

1. INTRODUCTORY ITEMS: COUNCIL ACTION 

Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of the Minutes from the August 15 & 22, 2022 Council Meetings Need Motion/Mayor       Memo 

Approval and Adjustment of Agenda including Consent Agenda Need Motion/Mayor       Memo 

a. Change Order #3 & Final Payment Request – 2021 Fourth Street & Fair Street Overlay Project

b. Final Payment Request – Sanitary Sewer Slip Lining

2. PRIORITY ITEMS:

Mayor’s Presentations, Appointments & Reappointments

a. Board of Adjustment Appointment Approve/Mayor      Memo 

b. Washington Area Highway Transportation Committee Appointment Approve/Mayor      Memo 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

4. CITIZENS COMMENTS:

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

6. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS:

7. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS:

a. An ordinance authorizing and directing the City of Washington, Missouri to accept the proposal from

George L. Crawford and Associates D/B/A CBB for Professional Services associated with the Highway 100

and Rabbit Trail Analysis and CMAQ Application and amend the 2022 Budget. Read & Int/Read/Vote/Mayor     Memo 

8. COMMISSION, COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS:

9. MAYOR’S REPORT:

10. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:

11. COUNCIL COMMENTS:



12. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:

Public Vote on whether or not to hold a closed meeting to discuss personnel, legal and real estate

matters pursuant to Section 610.021 RSMo (2000). Roll Call Vote 

13. INFORMATION:

a. Single Stream Recycling Acceptable Items

b. 46th Annual Bicycle Safety Rodeo – September 10, 2022

c. E-Cycle Collection Event – October  8, 2022

14. ADJOURNMENT:

NOTICE: COPIES OF THE PROPOSED ORDINANCES ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 

PRIOR TO THE TIME THE BILL IS UNDER CONSIDERATION BY THE CITY COUNCIL. 

POSTED BY SHERRI KLEKAMP, CITY CLERK, AUGUST 31, 2022 

A COPY OF THIS NOTICE IS ALSO AVAILABLE ONLINE AT www.washmo.gov 

http://www.washmo.gov/


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 

MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022 

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS: 
The Regular Meeting of the City of Washington, Missouri, City Council was held on Monday, 
August 15, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber. Mayor Doug Hagedorn opened the 
meeting with roll call and Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor: Doug Hagedorn Present 
Council Members: Ward I Al Behr Present 

Duane Reed Present 
Ward II Mark Hidritch Present 

Mark Wessels Present 
Ward III Chad Briggs Present 

Jeff Patke Present 
Ward IV Mike Coulter Present 

Joe Holtmeier Present 

Also Present: City Attorney Mark Piontek 
City Administrator Darren Lamb 
City Clerk Sherri Klekamp 
Police Chief Jim Armstrong 
Public Works Director John Nilges 
Economic Development Director Sal Maniaci 
Emergency Management Director Mark Skornia 

Originals and/or copies of agenda items of the meeting, including recorded votes are available on 
record in the office of the City Clerk. Each ordinance is read a minimum of twice by title, unless 
otherwise noted. 

App.roval of Minutes: 
* Approval of the Minutes from the August 1, 2022 Council Meeting 

A motion to accept the minutes as presented made by Councilmember Patke, seconded by 
Councilmember Holtmeier, passed without dissent. 

Approval and Adjustment of Agenda including Consent Agenda: 
* Collector's/Treasurer s Report Summary- May 2022 
* Monthly Investment Report - May 2022 
* Blotter Item - 1 c; Liquor License Renewal: KC Se isl Council NO. 1121 
* Blotter Item - 7f; Special Sale Contract Ordinance 

A motion to accept and approve the agenda including the consent agenda accordingly made 
by Councilmember Holtmeier, seconded by Councilmember Patke, passed without dissent. 

Page 1 
August 15, 2022 

1. 



PRIORITY ITEMS: 
Mayor's Presentations, Appointments & Re-Appointments: 
* Police Department Reappointment 

A motion to accept and approve the reappointment made by Councilmember Patke, 
seconded by Councilmember Hidritch, passed without dissent. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
* Voluntary Annexation - Bieker Road 

August 9, 2022 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, Missouri 
Re: File No. 22-0801-VoluntaryAnnexation-Bieker Road 
Dear Mayor and Council Members: 
At the regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission, held on August 8, 2022 the 
Commission reviewed and approved the above request with a unanimous vote. 
Sincerely, 
Thomas R. Holdmeier 
Planning & Zoning 
Chairman 

Maniaci: Good Evening. You'll have to bear with me tonight, with this new TV the laser 
doesn't show up really on the screen all too well. We just ordered a new one today, but I'll try 
and describe what I'm talking about the best that I can. 

Your only Public Hearing tonight is a request for a voluntary annexation commonly 
known as the Hoelscher Farm or a portion of the Koch Farm. They're just north of Bieker Road 
in between Bieker and Rabbit Trail. You can see on the north side of that where the blue lines 
are, that's an older ariel, you can see where the homes have been built in the last few years. 

We had just approved a couple of months ago and grading has begun for the Koch Farm 
directly to the west of this that is currently being graded for single-family residential. The same 
developer is in an agreement with the City and the property owner for this to be annexed as well. 
You can see here it's not the entire parcel. This goes to the creek, that topography on the lower 
end that is significantly lower. They would need either a culvert or a small bridge to get to that 
so realistically that portion will be developed with the Kleekamp Farm to the east so they are 
asking to just annex this portion today as Rl-D Single-Family Residential. 

So John you can go to ... 
Nilges: Yeah. 
Maniaci: Next slide, I don't know if it's plugged in or not. There you go. This is just a newer 
area. You can see the general area of where we're at. Again, that's the whole parcel. They're 
only annexing around the creek down to Bieker Road. It is technically two parcels, you can see 
where that section line was along Bieker but in total, it's about 14 acres. It will connect to the 
development to the east so it will be cohesive with that. 

On the next slide, you'll see the proposed zoning. That hatched area is the Rl-D Single
Family Residential and they're requesting to bring it in to match that. It meets our 

Page2 
August 15, 2022 

j. 



Comprehensive Plan and meets staffs requirements, code requirements and staff recommends 
approval of this. Last week Planning and Zoning reviewed this and recommended unanimously 
to accept the annexation and the requested zoning of Rl-D Single-Family. 
Wessels: With that zoning Sal, how many units will .... 
Maniaci: Well, you get 7,500 square foot lots but realistically with the street going down the 
middle and having stormwater there, you're probably looking at about 25 to 30. 
Nilges: I think there's 34 just to the west. 
Maniaci: 36. 
Nilges: 36 okay, so you take that acreage and put it over there, I think 25 to 30 is pretty 
reasonable. 
Holtmeier: Are we putting in the street still? 
Maniaci: We are, we entered into an agreement with Wunderlich, correct designing this? 
Nilges: Yes, sir. 
Maniaci: And is under design now to put Bieker all of the way to Rabbit Trail. That's actually 
part of the development agreement. The annexation is signed by the owner and the developer. 
Our development agreement is what required that. Once we get that signed, you can come in and 
annex. We were hoping to get the plat done at the same time but Wunderlich wasn't done yet 
which is fine. They said next month ideally they'll get a plat in. At the next P&Z, we will 
actually see what the lot layout will look like. 
Nilges: If you remember that's a 40 foot roadway just like Rabbit Trail is. It'll have a sidewalk 
on the west side of the opposite side of this and then there will be a small culvert. Looked at a 
preliminary sub plan on Friday, it does like they will be bringing utilities down that road where 
the crossing is so they are going to want to move pretty quick on getting this road done just so 
they all kind of merry up together and it kind of all happens at the same time. It's all positive 
stuff. 
Patke: The existing development was all going to be to the west of the to be built road, this is 
all to the east of, correct? 
Maniaci: Yes but it will connect. On the north side of the existing development, where John's 
pointing, we originally had a hammerhead there in the plat. They did that on purpose knowing 
that hopefully this would get done. Now it is, they'll take out that hammerhead and actually 
connect that road to Rabbit Trail. 
Nilges: There road is right here where that pointer is kind of at, pretty close to there. Rabbit 
Trail coming in at 275 foot away which is about minimum where you want your intersections. 
There road will then meander through the development and then wrap back around, oops sorry 
it's pausing on me. It will wrap back around over to Rabbit Trail so it will kind of loop. That 
won't be the primary way people will go though. These lots in this western development 
actually back to the roadway. You won't have driveways off of that roadway which is one of our 
big things. That was a huge deal when we put those roads in. 
Behr: That was in that plat that they provided. 
Nilges: Inaudible .. . driveways to actually make it a through street to get people from point A to 
point B. 
Maniaci: Like we said, tonight's just the annexation but we do anticipate that plat being ready 
next month. 

Page3 
August 15, 2022 



Hagedorn: Any further discussion, questions? Take make a motion. 
Lamb: Open it up to the public for comments. 
Hagedorn: Public comments, okay, no one else. 

With no further discussion, a motion to accept this item into the minutes made by 
Councilmember Patke, seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier, passed without dissent. 

Bill No. 22-12641, Ordinance No. 22-13601, an ordinance annexing 14 acres of property 
located along Bieker Road in the City of Washington, Franklin County, Missouri. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

Remove second to last paragraph regarding written objection on first page and remove R-3 
Multi-Family Residential and replace with Rl-D Single Family Residential under Section 2 of 
second page, and modify ordinance. With no further discussion, the ordinance was read a 
second time and approved on the following vote; Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, 
Holtmeier-aye, Wessels-aye, Hidritch-aye, Coulter-aye. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
* None 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
* None 

REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 
* None 

ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 
Bill No. 22-12642, Ordinance No. 22-13602, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
execution of a Contractor Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri 
and Franklin County Construction for the Washington Freight Depot Renovations Project 
and amend the 2021/2022 Budget. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the following vote; 
Behr-aye, Briggs-nay, Reed-nay, Patke-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Wessels-aye, Hidritch-nay, Coulter
aye. 

Bill No. 22-12643, Ordinance No. 22-13603, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
execution of a Lease Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and The 
Axe Depot, LLC. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

Section 3.1 sum should read $36,000.00 per annum on third page and modify ordinance. 
After discussion, a motion to switch Item 7a - Lease Agreement and 7b - Contractor Agreement 
made by Councilmember Reed, seconded by Councilmember Hidritch, passed without dissent. 

Page 4 
August 15, 2022 

1-



With no further discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Reed-nay, Holtmeier-aye, Patke-aye, Wessels-aye, 
Hidritch-nay, Coulter-aye. 

Bill No. 22-12644, Ordinance No. 22-13604, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
execution of a Sales Agreement by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and the 
Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Holtmeier. 

After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the following vote; 
Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Wessels-aye, Hidritch-aye, Coulter
aye. 

Bill No. 22-12645, Ordinance No. 22-13605, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
execution of an Agreement to Sell and Purchase Real Estate by and between the City of 
Washington, Missouri and ELS Washington, LLC. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Patke. 

After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the following vote; 
Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Wessels-aye, Hidritch-aye, Coulter
aye. 

Bill No. 22-12646, Ordinance No. 22-13606, an ordinance approving a boundary 
adjustment for Quail Run Subdivision Plat 8 in the City of Washington, Franklin County, 
Missouri. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Hidritch. 

After a brief discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Wessels-aye, 
Hidritch-aye, Coulter-aye. 

Bill No. 22-12647, Ordinance No. 22-13607, an ordinance authorizing and directing the 
execution of a Special Sale Contract by and between the City of Washington, Missouri and 
Fred Hartbank. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Patke. 

After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the following vote; 
Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Wessels-aye, Hidritch-aye, Coulter
aye. 

COMMISSION, COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS 
Bill No. 22-12648, Ordinance No. 22-13608, an ordinance approving the final plat of 
Terrace in Washington Plat 3 in the City of Washington, Franklin County, Missouri. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Patke. 

After discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the following vote; 
Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Wessels-aye, Hidritch-aye, Coulter
aye. 

Page 5 
August 15, 2022 

1 



MAYOR'S REPORT 
* Special Council Meeting August 22, 2022 at 6 p.m. 
* Next Regular Council Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 6, 2022 due to the Labor 

Day Holiday. 
* Thank you to staff for a job well done during the Washington Town and Country Fair. 
* Thank you for the great discussion this evening regarding the Freight Depot. 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 
* Budget Workshop will be held during the Special Council Meeting on August 22, 2022. 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
* Councilmember Briggs thanked staff for a job well done during the Washington Town and 

Country Fair. 
* Discussions on the existing median at North Crest Drive, possible placement of a new 

firehouse location, traffic study, three-way stop sign and raised bed near Target, Beach 
Tennis and American Legion Baseball. 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT 
Public vote on whether or not to hold a closed meeting to discuss personnel, legal and real estate 
matters pursuant to Section 610.021 RSMo (2000) passed at 8:17 p.m. on the following roll call 
vote; Behr-aye, Briggs-aye, Reed-aye, Patke-aye, Holtmeier-aye, Wessels-aye, Hidritch-aye, 
Coulter-aye. 

The regular session reconvened at 8:51 p.m. 

ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business to discuss, a motion to adjourn made at 8:51 p.m. by Councilmember 
Patke, seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier passed without dissent. 

Adopted: 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Passed: 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Page 6 
August 15, 2022 

President of City Council 

Mayor of Washington, Missouri 

1. 



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, FRANKLIN COUNTY, MISSOURI 

MONDAY, AUGUST 22, 2022 

INTRODUCTORY ITEMS: 
The Special Meeting of the City of Washington, Missouri, City Council was held on Monday, 
August 22, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber. Mayor Doug Hagedorn opened the 
meeting with roll call and Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor: 
Council Members: Ward I 

Doug Hagedorn 
Al Behr 

Ward II 

Ward III 

Ward IV 

Also Present: City Administrator 
City Clerk 
Police Chief 
Fire Chief 

Duane Reed 
Mark Hidritch 
Mark Wessels 
Chad Briggs 
Jeff Patke 
Mike Coulter 
Joe Holtmeier 

Emergency Management Director 
Human Resources Manager 
Economic Development Director 
Public Works Director 
Street Superintendent 
Finance Director 
Parks Director 
Airport Manager 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Absent 
Present 

Darren Lamb 
Sherri Klekamp 
Jim Armstrong 
Tim Frankenberg 
Mark Skornia 
Shauna Pfitzinger 
Sal Maniaci 
John Nilges 
Tony Bonastia 
Mary Sprung 
Wayne Dunker 
Kevin Hellmann 

Originals and/or copies of agenda items of the meeting, including recorded votes are available on 
record in the office of the City Clerk. Each ordinance is read a minimum of twice by title, unless 
otherwise noted. 

Approval and Adjustment of Agenda including Consent Agenda: 
* Liquor License Renewal: Baps West End LLC 

A motion to accept and approve the agenda including the consent agenda accordingly made 
by Councilmember Holtmeier, seconded by Councilmember Behr, passed without dissent. 

PRIORITY ITEMS: 
* Budget Workshop 

City Administrator Darren Lamb discussed budget highlights from the 2021/2022 budget 
year and the 2022/2023 budget year. Discussion ensued regarding a cost of living increase 
for all employees. 

Page 1 
August 22, 2022 

1 



PUBLIC HEARINGS 
* City of Washington Tax Levy 

A public hearing will be held on August 22, 2022, at 6:00 P.M, or as soon thereafter as the 
public may be heard, in the Council Chambers of City Hall of said City to set the proposed 
property tax rates for the City of Washington and the City of Washington Library District. 
Citizens may be heard on the following proposed property tax rates: 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 
ASSESSED VALUATION PROPOSED PRIOR 

TAXYEAR TAXYEAR 
Real Estate $325,998,624 $321,320,320 

Personal Property 84.568.737 70,221,712 

TOTAL $410,567,361 $391,542,032 

Based on Missouri State statutes, the permitted 2022 tax levy for the general operating levy 
of the City of Washington is $0.5641 per $100 of assessed valuation. 

FUND TAX REVENUE PROPOSED PRIOR YEAR TAX INCREASE 
FOR 2022-2023 TAX RATE REVENUE (DECREASE) 

General Fund $2,316,010 $0.5641/$100 $2,208,690 $107,320 

ASSESSED 
VALUATION 
Real Estate 

CITY OF WASHINGTON - LIBRARY DISTRICT 
PROPOSED PRIOR 

TAXYEAR 
$128,039,906 

Personal Property 

TOTAL 

TAXYEAR 
$130,067,759 

31,598,669 

$161,666,428 

27,263.967 

$155,303,873 

Based on Missouri State statutes, the permitted 2022 tax levy for the general operating levy 
of the City of Washington -Library District is $0.1909 per $100 of assessed valuation. 

FUND TAX REVENUE PROPOSED PRIOR YEAR TAX INCREASE 
FOR 2022-2023 TAX RATE REVENUE (DECREASE) 

Library Fund $308,621 $0.1909/$100 $297,240 $11,380 

MAXIMUM ALLOWED, BY MO STATE STATUES: 
TOTAL OF BOTH TAX LEVIES: $0. 7550/$100 
RATES ARE CONTINGENT ON FINAL ASSESSED VALUATIONS AND COMPLIANCE 
WITH STATE LAWS. 
CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI 

Page2 
August 22, 2022 

1 



Publish in The Missourian in the Weekend edition August 17, 2022 edition and in the 
Weekend edition, August 19-20, 2022. 

Sprung: Okay, so included in your packet tonight is the information for the Public Hearing. 
The assessed valuation for the City of Washington, the total assessed valuation from Franklin 
County for the proposed tax year came in at 410,567,361. Based on Missouri State Statues, the 
permitted 2022 tax levy for the general operating levy for the City of Washington is .5641 per 
$100 of assessed valuation. 

For the fiscal year 2023 for the general fund, that would be approximately $2,316,010 of 
tax revenue. Compared to last year, that's basically an increase of $107,320 which is basically 
4.8%. 
Wessels: Mary, what was the rate last year? 
Sprung: Same thing. 
Wessels: Same rate? 
Sprung: Yes. 
Wessels: Okay. 
Sprung: For the Library District, the assessed valuation for Franklin County is 161,666,428, 
which for the 2022 tax levy for the Library District would be .1909 per $100 of assessed 
valuation. That results in tax revenue for 2023 of $308,621, which is approximately $11,380 
increase, which is 3.8%. 

Both tax rates combined the maximum allowed by Missouri State Statues for both of the 
total tax levies would be .7550 per $100 of assessed valuation. So that would be what I would be 
proposing would be to assess that at the maximum allowed. 
Holtmeier: Mary, do you know, I know our Library District a lot of for the new guys, can you 
tell them where, do you know where the Library District lines are? Darren, do you know? 
Lamb: Inaudible 
Sprung: I do know it goes to Stafford, I do know that. 
Lamb: Inaudible 
Sprung: Nelson's not here? 
Holtmeier: Just to let you guys know that. 
Lamb: Nelson's at a Library Board Meeting. 
Holtmeier: Thank you. 
Patke: I think it's the right thing to do to keep the tax levy the same as last year and if there's a 
Public Hearing but feel free. 
Behr: So just looking back through history as the new guy, looks like we went down two three 
years ago. Does that sound right, and it's held the same? This would be the third year maybe at 
this rate? I'm testing your memory, I'm sorry. 
Sprung: Second year at this rate. 
Behr: So last year it went down? 
Sprung: Yes, if the assessed valuation goes up then the tax rate goes down because they have 
an inverse relationship. 
Behr: Okay. 
Sprung: Because you basically, your tax revenue the way the Handcock Amendment works is 
the tax revenue stays basically the same. You can only grow based on your new construction 
and anything that's annexed in. If you have in a non-assessed year or in an assessment year, then 

Page3 
August 22, 2022 

1. 



if your assessed valuation goes up then in it usually drives your tax rate down. So a lot of times 
they can work different ways. 
Wessels: There's not a lot of creativity in the whole ... 
Behr: No. 
Sprung: Sometimes when you're like, well why did my tax rate go down but my taxes went up? 
That's usually what we hear a lot of. 
Behr: Okay. 
Sprung: It doesn't always work that way. 
Behr: Thank you. 
Sprung: Just so you know, the new construction this year, I have that too, sometimes people ask 
that, for the general fund was 3,102,229 and for the Library District, it was $1,105,852. That 
was the amount of new construction that got added onto the tax rolls. 
Hagedorn: We'll entertain a motion. 
Klekamp: It's a Public Hearing. 
Patke: Public Hearing. 
Lamb: Inaudible 
Hagedorn: Sorry, to the floor. Anyone wish to comment? 

With no further discussion, a motion to accept this item into the minutes made by 
Councilmember Patke, seconded by Councilmember Holtmeier, passed without dissent. 

Bill No. 22-12649, Ordinance No. 22-13609, an ordinance levying and imposing for the 
calendar year 2022 a tax upon all real estate and taxable tangible property in the City of 
Washington, Missouri for General Municipal Purposes and for a Free Public Library. 
The ordinance was introduced by Councilmember Patke. 

After a brief discussion, the ordinance was read a second time and approved on the 
following vote; Holtmeier-aye, Patke-aye, Briggs-aye, Wessels-aye, Hidritch-aye, Reed-aye, 
Behr-aye, Coulter-absent. 

REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 
* Show Me Zero Program Agreement 

August 16, 2022 
Mayor Doug Hagedorn 
City Council Members 
RE: Show Me Zero Program Agreement 
Honorable Mayor and City Council, 
A couple years ago under the direction of Chief Menefee, the department sought out grant 
resources to replace our aging mapping equipment and software for accident reconstruction 
and crime scene mapping. The department was denied the grant request from the original 
source. However, Sgt. Mike Grissom diligently sought other grant funding for the project 
through the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission. Under the Show Me Zero 
Program, the department was awarded the grant with funding of $41,762. This amount 
includes a new total station, data collector, mapping software, and training for several 
officers on the new equipment. 

Page4 
August 22, 2022 



This is a 100% funded grant agreement. However, please note that when Sgt. Grissom 
originally began the process of completing the grant application, he received a quote from 
the supplier that totaled $41,762, which was included in the grant. As is typical with the 
grant process, there was a delay before we were notified of the award. Due to the time that 
has passed since the original quote (more than 90 days) the cost of the equipment increased 
slightly. An updated quote totaled $43,572. In order to take advantage of the awarded 
funds, the city will be responsible for the total difference of$], 780. 
I have submitted the amount for the 2022-23 budget. I recommend that we move forward 
with this grant opportunity. $1,780 is a small price to pay to have the most up to date 
equipment, software and training to properly investigate motor vehicle crashes and crime 
scenes. 
Respectfully, 
Jim Armstrong, Chief of Police 
After a brief discussion, a motion to move forward with the agreement made by 

Councilmember Hidritch, seconded by Councilmember Briggs, passed without dissent. 

*Councilmember Hidritch requested a list of employees and their salaries. 

ADJOURNMENT 
With no further business to discuss, a motion to adjourn made at 6:58 p.m. by Councilmember 
Holtmeier, seconded by Councilmember Patke passed without dissent. 

Adopted: 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Passed: 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Page 5 
August 22, 2022 

President of City Council 

Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 18, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE: 2021 Fourth Street & Fair Street Overlay Project 
Change Order #3 and Final Payment Request 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

Please find enclosed Change Order No. 3 for this construction project. The overall contract 
amount has been increased by $3,156.76 as shown in Change Order #3. This change order 
amount addresses the increase in liquid asphalt cement costs over the project duration. The 
original project contract is $635,104.36. 

Respectfully submitted, 

A"'-Olve,o.,, F. L~ 

Andrea F. Lueken, P.E. 
Assistant City Engineer 



636-390-1010 www.washmo.gov 

CHANGE ORDER #3 and FINAL PAYMENT REQUEST 

NAME OF PROJECT: 

OWNER: 

CONTRACTOR: 

Fourth & Fair Street Overlay 

City of Washington, Missouri 

Gershenson Construction, Co. 

THE FOLLOWING CHANGES WERE MADE TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

Original Contract Price .... .... ..... ..................................................................... $635,104.36 
Change Order #1 ........ .... .... ......... ... ... ..... ....... ... .. ......................................... . $ 0.00 
Change Order #2 ....... .. .. .............. ..... .. ... .... ... ................................. .............. . $ 82,856.61 
Change Order #3 ..... ... .... ... ..... .... ........ ... .. .... ............ ... ..... .... .. ... .. ... .. ..... ..... .. . $ 3,156.76 
Contract Arnau nt. .. ..... .... .. ..... ............. ....... .............. ...................... ........... ..... $721,117. 73 
Previous Payments .... .. ......... ..... .... .. ..... .... ................ ................ ......... ....... ..... $716,960.97 
Pay Request. ..... ...................... .. ... ..... .. ... ..................................................... .. $ 4,156.76 
Balance Remainin ....... ....... ... ...................................... ..... ....... ........ .... ... ...... 0.00 

Accepted: Approval: 

Date: Date : --------- -- -------------

GERSHENSON CONSTRUCTION CO. CITY OF WASHINGTON, MISSOURI: 

By : _ ___ _ ______ _ By: _ ____________ _ 

Title: Title: ----------- -------------



Application and Certificate For Payment 

To Owner: WASHINGTON CITY OF Project: 
405 JEFFERSON STREET 
WASHINGTON, MO 63090 

From Gershenson Construction Co. Contractor Job 
(Contractor): 2 Truitt Drive Number: 

Eureka, MO 63025 
Via (Architect) : 

Phone: 636 938-9595 
Contract For: 

Contractor's Application For Payment 

Change Order Summary Additions Deductions 

Change orders approved in 
previous months by owner 

65,628.10 
Date 

Number Approved 

Change 5 07/01/22 3,156.76 
orders 6 07/01/22 17,228.51 
approved 
this month 

Totals 20,385.27 

Net change by change orders 86,013.37 

Toe undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, Information, and 
belief the work covered by this Application For Payment has been completed in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, that all amounts have been paid by the Contractor for work for which previous 
Certificates for Payment were issued and payments received from the Owner, and that current 
payment shown herein is now due. 

C.Cnrru.to~a'l 
By: --:;,,_ev ___ / _ _...::::,. \.._ ___ _ 
State orffi\~IJfi < 11 I ', t\l I ~ I JACKIE VAN NORN'.AN 

NOTARY PUBLIC. NOTARY SEAL 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

'~ fG{(&rgLL¥fdL _sr. LOUIS COUNTY 
COMMISS~ # 14518130 

4th St & Fair St Overlay 

' 

21029 

Original contract sum 

Net change by change orders 

Contract sum to date 

Total completed and stored to date 

Retainage 

0.0% of completed work 

0.0% of stored material 

Total retainage 

Total earned less retainage 

Less previous certificates of payment 

0.000% of taxable amount 

Current sales tax 

Current payment due 

Application No: 

Period To: 

Architect's 
Project No: 

Contract Date: 

Page 1 -8 
,R Date: 07/31/2022 

07/31/22 

635,104.36 / __.. 
86,013.37 

721,117.73 ....-

721,117.73 / 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 / 

721,117.73 

716,960.97 / 

0.00 

0.00 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: AUGUST 6, 2026 Balance to finish, including retainage 

4,156.761 / 

0.00 

Architect's Certificate for Payment 

In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the 
data comprising the above application the Architect certifies to the Owner that to the 
best of the Architect's knowledge, information and belief the Work has progressed as 
indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and 
the Contractor is entitled to payment of the Amount Certified. 

Amount Certified: $ -------------

Architect 

By: Date: ____ _ 

This Certification is not negotiable. The Amount Certified is payable only to the Contractor named herein. Issuance, 
payment, and acceptance of payment are without prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this 
Contract. 

~ 



Application and Certificate For Payment -- page 2 

To Owner: WASHINGTON CITY OF 

From (Contractor) : Gershenson Construction Co. 

Project: 4th St & Fair St Overlay 

Item Unit Contract 
Number Description Price Quanbty UM 

00 

0010 Mobilization 46.990.0000 1.000 LS 

0020 Ful Width Mrning 2.5500 14,990.000 SY 

0030 Asphalt Surface Coor se 1.S" Bp-2 87.8000 943.000 TON 

004-0 Asphalt Surface Course 2"' Bp-2 82.4000 473.000 TON 

0050 Asphalt Base Repair 4.5" 148.0000 217.000 TON 

0060 18" Asphalt Patdi 20.3000 884.000 LF 

0070 Sidewalk Trench Drain 100.0000 196.000 LF 

0080 Adju.,1 w•:or V~IY6s In s,....., 100.0000 23.000 EAC 

0090 Replaoe Curved Vane Grate Inlet 2,250.0000 4.000 EAC 
Top 

0100 8'" Schec:Me 40 Pipe 50.0000 10.000 LF 

0110 Dnveway Apron 6" T hick R & R 9.3000 4 ,019.000 SF 

0120 StJeetApron S-Th; dt R&rH;g:l 13.2500 1.1n.ooo SF 
Early ConGrats 

0130 Cuf1> And Gutter R&r 39.8700 3,148.000 LF 

0140 Concrete Sidewalk 4'' R&r 6.4200 12,975.000 SF 

0150 New Conaete Sidewat k 4• Thick 6.1000 3,596.000 SF 

0160 ADA c.um Ramp R&r 15.3500 1,455.000 SF 

0170 New ADA Curb Ramp 14.6000 860.000 SF 

0180 Adjus1 Watet Valves In Sidewalk 100.0000 24.000 EAC 

0190 Deoorative Fence 140.0000 100.000 LF 

0200 Grad;ng. Seed;,,g And Slraw 5,000.0000 1.000 LS 

0210 Relocate Existing Si gns 800.0000 4 .000 EAC 

0220 Chal\netiz.ers 22.0000 100.000 EAC 

0230 Road Wort< Ahead 125.0000 4.000 EAC 

0240 Narrow Lanes 125.0000 2.000 EAC 

0250 Be P,-red To Slop 125.0000 2.000 EAC 

0260 FlaggerSymbol 125.0000 2.000 EAC 

0270 Diamond Pro Bloclt Wall 37.5000 1,135.000 SF 

0280 Mobilization and Cleanup 0.0000 .000 LS 

5000 Change Oroer 0.0000 .000 LS 

5001 Asphalt Index 0.0000 .000 LS 

Total 

Scheduled 
Value 

46.990.00 

38.224.50 

82,795.40 

38,975.20 

32.116.00 

17,945.20 

19.600.00 

2,300.00 

9.000.00 

500.00 

37,376.70 

15,595.25 

125,510.76 

83,299.50 

21,935.60 

22,334.25 

12,556.00 

2,400.00 

14,000.00 

5,000.00 

3,200.00 

2,200.00 

500.00 

250.00 

250.00 

250.00 

42,562.50 

6,000.00 

17,065.60 

4 ,156.76 

704,889.22 

Application No : 9 

Contractor's Job Number: 
Architect's Project No: 

Date : 07 /31/22 

21029 

Period To: 07/31/22 

I Work Completed I Work Completed l[ Completed and Stored To Date 

I Previous Application This Period 

Quantity Amount QuantJty Amount • uantity Amount % Retention 

100.00 % 46,990.00 0.00% o.oo 100.00 % 46.990.00 100.0 0.00 

14,709.000 37,507.95 .000 0.00 14,709.000 37.507.95 98.1 0.00 

1,130.220 99,233.31 .000 0.00 1,130.220 99,233.31 119.9 0.00 

554.180 45,664A3 .000 0.00 554.180 45,664.43 117.2 0.00 

76.250 11,285.00 .000 0.00 76.250 11,285.00 35.1 0.00 

884.000 17,945.20 .000 0.00 884.000 17,945.20 100.0 0.00 

180,500 18,050.00 .000 0.00 180.500 18,050.00 92.1 0.00 

21 .000 2,100.00 .000 0.00 21.000 2,100.00 91.3 0.00 

6 ,000 13,500.00 .000 0.00 6.000 13,500.00 150.0 0.00 

10.000 500.00 .000 0.00 10.000 500.00 100.0 0.00 

6,936.500 64,509.45 .000 0.00 6,936.500 64,509.45 172.6 0.00 

1,294.000 17,145.50 .000 0.00 1,294.000 17,145.50 109.9 0.00 

2,844.000 113,390.28 .000 0.00 2,844.000 113,390.28 90.3 000 

12,800.000 82,176.00 .000 0,00 12,800.000 82.176.00 98.7 0.00 

3,234.000 19,727.40 .000 0.00 3,234.000 19,727.40 89.9 0.00 

1,473.000 22,610.55 .000 0.00 1,473.000 22,610.55 101.2 0.00 

743.000 10,847.80 .000 0.00 743.000 10,847.80 86.4 0.00 

25.000 2,500.00 .000 0.00 25.000 2,500.00 104.2 0.00 

100.000 14,000.00 .000 0.00 100.000 14.000.00 100.0 0.00 

100.00% 5,000.00 0.00 % 0.00 100.00 % 5,000.00 100.0 0 00 

4.000 3,200.00 .000 0.00 4.000 3,200.00 100.0 0.00 

100.000 2,200.00 .000 0.00 100.000 2.200.00 100.0 0.00 

4.000 500.00 .000 0.00 4.000 500.00 100.0 0,00 

2.000 250.00 .000 0.00 2.000 250.00 100.0 0.00 

2.000 250.00 .000 0.00 2000 250.00 100.0 0.00 

2.000 250.00 .000 0.00 2.000 250.00 100.0 000 

1,135.000 42,562.50 .000 0.00 1,135.000 42,562.50 100.0 o.oo 

100 00 % 6,000.00 000% 0.00 100.00% 6,000.00 100.0 000 

100.00% 17,065.60 0,00% 0.00 100.00% 17,065.60 100.0 0.00 

000% 0.00 100.00 % 4,156.76 100.00 % 4 ,156.76 100.0 0.00 

716,960.97 4 ,156.76 721 .117.73 0.00 

Memo 

.1.'4 



Application and Certificate For Payment -- page 3 

To Owner: WASHINGTON CITY OF 

From (Contractor): Gershenson Construction Co. 
Project: 4th St & Fair St Overlay 

Item Unit Contract 
Number Description Price Quantity 

Application Total 

Scheduled 
UM Value 

704.889.22 

Application No: 9 

Contractor's Job Number: 
Architect's Project No: 

I Wor1c: Completed I I Wor1c: Completed 
Previous Application This Period 

Date: 07/31/22 
21029 

Period To: 07/31/22 

11 

Completed and Stored To Date I 
Quanticy Amount Quantity Amount Quantity Amount % Retention 

716,960.97 ..1 ,156,76 721 ,117.T.I 0.00 

Memo 

k 



4 Chamber Drive, Washington, MO 63090 

August 30, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

City of Washington 

405 Jefferson St. 

Washington, MO 63090 

RE: Final Payment Request - lnsituform Technologies LLC 

Honorable Mayor and City Council: 

636-390-1030 www.washmo.gov 

The Wastewater Department is asking for final payment for the slip lining of sanitary sewer 

lines. The project, originally bid at $544,939.20, was revised October 12, 2021 for the amount of 

$490,374.60 due to changes in the scope of work. While the work was being completed, some 

lines were excluded from the project, thus leaving a positive balance of $50,687.49. 

As always, if you have any questions, concerns or need additional information, please advise. 

Kevin Quaethem 

Water and Wastewater Superintendent 



4 Chamber Drive, Washington, MO 63090 636-390-1030 www.washmo.gov 

TO: 

NAME OF PROJECT: 

OWNER: 

CONTRACTOR: 

FINAL PAYMENT REQUEST 

City Council 

Sanitary Sewer Slip Lining 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 

lnsituform Technologies LLC 

THE FOLLOWING FINAL PAYMENT IS HEREBY REQUESTED TO BE MADE TO THE CONTRACTOR: 

Original Contract Price ....................................................................................... $490,374.60 

Previous Payments ................. ... ... ............................ .......................................... $327,607.54 

Final Payment ........... .... ................... .. .. ........ ........................ .. .. .... .... .. .................. $112,079.57 

Approval: 

Date: -----------
City of Washington, Missouri 

By: -----------

Title: ------------



r~ ~ /nsituform· 

PLEASE REMIT BY CHECK TO : 

AEGION. INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC 
P.O. BOX 74008440 

Stronger. Safer. Infrastructure.· CHICAGO, IL 60674-8440 
PAGE: 1 of 5 

BILL TO: DATE: 5/26/2022 
CITY OF WASHINGTON PLEASE REMIT BY ACH TO : ESTIMATE: 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC INVOICE# 688174 
405 JEFFERSON STREET BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH CUSTOMER PO : 
WASHINGTON, MO 63090 ROUTING: 111000012 JOB NUMBER: 102852 

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N 
PAYMENT TERMS : Net 30 Days 

CONTRACT : 6"SANIT.&36"STORM CIPP,FY2021 FEDERAL ID: 13-3032158 
PROJECT: WASHINGTON MO,FY2021,REV 1 ACCOUNT: 003750825891 

ITEM CONTRACT AMOUNT COMPLETED THIS PERIOD COMPLETED TO DATE 
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT QUANTITY AMOUNT 

01 Mobilization 1.00 LS 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 30,000.00 

02 Clean and 1V 6" 14,103.00 LF 3.90 55,001.70 0.00 0.00 11,472.00 44,740.80 

03 Clean and 1V 36" 342.00 LF 20.00 6,840.00 0.00 0.00 342.00 6,840.00 

04 MH 1 to MH 2 to MH 3 6" 176.00 LF 34.75 6,116.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

05 MH 3to MH4 6" 319.00 LF 25.75 8,214.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

06 MH 4to MH5 6" 167.00 LF 34.75 5,803.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

07 MH 3to MH6 6" 424.00 LF 23.00 9,752.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

08 MH 6 to MH 7 to MH B 6" 399.00 LF 23.00 9,177.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

09 MH 8 to MH 9 to MH 10 6" 270.00 LF 28.50 7,695.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

10 MH10toMH11 6" 460.00 LF 23.50 10,810.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

11 MH11toMH126" 323.00 LF 27.00 8,721.00 0.00 0.00 329.00 8,883.00 

12 MH 13 to MH 14 to MH 15 6" 339.00 LF 24.75 8,390.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

13 MH 15 to MH 16 to MH 17 6" 313.00 LF 25.75 8,059.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

14 MH 17 to MH 18 to End 6" 500.00 LF 23.50 11,750.00 342.00 8,037.00 342.00 8,037.00 

CONTINUED ... 

.. 

11, 



r~ ~ lnsituform· 

PLEASE REMIT BY CHECK TO : 

AEGION··- INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC 
P.O. BOX 74008440 

Stronger. Safer. Infrastructure: CHICAGO, IL 60674-8440 
PAGE: 2 of 5 

BILL TO: DATE: 5/26/2022 

CITY OF WASHINGTON PLEASE REMIT BY ACH TO : ESTIMATE: 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC INVOICE# 688174 

405 JEFFERSON STREET BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH CUSTOMER PO : 

WASHINGTON, MO 63090 ROUTING: 111000012 JOB NUMBER: 102852 

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N 
PAYMENT TERMS : Net 30 Days 

CONTRACT : 6"SANIT.&36"STORM CIPP,FY2021 FEDERAL ID: 13-3032158 
PROJECT: WASHINGTON MO,FY2021,REV 1 ACCOUNT: 003750825891 

ITEM 
DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

CONTRACT AMOUNT COMPLETED THIS PERIOD COMPLETED TO DATE 
NO QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT QUANTITY AMOUNT 

15 MH 17 to MH 19 6" 696.00 LF 21.25 14,790.00 715.00 15,193.75 715.00 15,193.75 

16 MH17toMH20 6" 319.00 LF 2625 8,373.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

17 MH 20 to MH 21 6" 508.00 LF 22.50 11,430.00 0.00 0.00 341 .00 7,672.50 

18 MH 20 to MH 22 6" 531.00 LF 23.50 12,478.50 0.00 0.00 480.00 11,280.00 

19 MH 22 to MH 23 6" 236.00 LF 30.50 7,198.00 289.00 8,814.50 289.00 8,814.50 

20 MH 23 to MH end 6" 131 .00 LF 42.25 5,534.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

21 MH 20 to MH 24 6" 300.00 LF 27.00 8,100.00 0.00 0.00 308.00 8,316.00 

22 MH 24 to MH 25 6" 362.00 LF 24.75 8,959.50 0.00 0.00 365.00 9,033.75 

23 MH 25 to MH 26 6" 392.00 LF 24.75 9.702.00 0.00 0.00 404.00 9,999.00 

24 MH 26 to MH 27 6" 390.00 LF 24.75 9.652.50 407.00 10,07325 407.00 10,073.25 

25 MH 27 to MH 28 6" 363.00 LF 25.25 9,165.75 356.00 8,989.00 356.00 8,989.00 

26 MH 101 to MH 102 6" 423.00 LF 24.00 10,152.00 374.00 8,976.00 374.00 8,976.00 

27 MH 102 to MH 103 6" 388.00 LF 24.75 9,603.00 395.00 9,776.25 395.00 9,776.25 

28 MH 102 to MH 10410 MH 106 6" 421 .00 LF 23.00 9,683.00 343.00 7 ,889.00 343.00 7,889.00 

CONTINUED ... 

!lb 



r~ ~ lnsituform· 

PLEASE REMIT BY CHECK TO : 

AEGION' INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC 
P.O. BOX 74008440 

Stronger. Safer. Infrastructure.- CHICAGO, IL 60674-8440 
PAGE: 3 of 5 

BILL TO: DATE: 5/26/2022 
CITY OF WASHINGTON PLEASE REMIT BY ACH TO : ESTIMATE: 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC INVOICE# 688174 
405 JEFFERSON STREET BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH CUSTOMER PO : 
WASHINGTON, MO 63090 ROUTING: 111000012 JOB NUMBER: 102852 

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N 
PAYMENT TERMS : Net 30 Days 

CONTRACT : 6"SANIT.&36"STORM CIPP,FY2021 FEDERAL ID: 13-3032158 
PROJECT: WASHINGTON MO,FY2021,REV 1 ACCOUNT: 003750825891 

ITEM CONTRACT AMOUNT COMPLETED THIS PERIOD COMPLETED TO DATE 
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT QUANTITY AMOUNT 

29 MH 104to MH 105 6" 275.00 LF 28.50 7,837.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

30 MH 106 to MH 107 to MH 108 6" 252.00 LF 30.50 7,686.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

31 MH 108 to MH 109 to MH end 6" 329.00 LF 24.75 8,142.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

32 MH 106to MH 110to MH 113 6" 380.00 LF 24.75 9,405.00 115.00 2,846.25 115.00 2,846.25 

33 MH110toMH111toMH112 6" 261.00 LF 28.50 7,438.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

34 MH113toMH114 6" 170.00 LF 34.75 5,907.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

35 MH 114to MH 115 6" 207.00 LF 33.50 6,934.50 221.00 7,403.50 221.00 7,403.50 

36 MH 115to MH 11610 MH 117 6" 154.00 LF 42.00 6,468.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

37 MH117toMH118toMH119 6" 223.00 LF 32.50 7,247.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

38 MH 28 to MH end 6" 253.00 LF 31.00 7,843.00 0.00 0.00 226.00 7,006.00 

39 MH 114to MH 120 6" 257.00 LF 31.00 7,967.00 0.00 0.00 253.00 7,843.00 

40 MH 12010 MH 11 6" 538.00 LF 23.50 12,643.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

41 MH 121 to MH 122 6" 221.00 LF 32.50 7,182.50 0.00 0.00 235.00 7,637.50 

42 MH 12 to MH end 6" 219.00 LF 32.50 7,117.50 0.00 0.00 235.00 7,637.50 

CONTINUED ... 

'lb 



,~ ~ lnsituform· 

PLEASE REMIT BY CHECK TO : 

AEGION' INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC 
P.O. BOX 74008440 

Stronger. Safer. Infrastructure.- CHICAGO, IL 60674-8440 
PAGE: 4 of 5 

BILL TO: DATE: 5/26/2022 
CITY OF WASHINGTON PLEASE REMIT BY ACH TO : ESTIMATE: 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC INVOICE# 688174 

405 JEFFERSON STREET BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH CUSTOMER PO : 
WASHINGTON, MO 63090 ROUTING: 111000012 JOB NUMBER: 102852 

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N 
PAYMENT TERMS : Net 30 Days 

CONTRACT : 6"SANIT.&36"STORM CIPP,FY2021 FEDERAL ID: 13-3032158 
PROJECT: WASHINGTON MO,FY2021,REV 1 ACCOUNT: 003750825891 

ITEM CONTRACT AMOUNT COMPLETED THIS PERIOD COMPLETED TO DATE 
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT QUANTITY AMOUNT 

43 MH 121 to MH 123 6" 493.00 LF 24.00 11,832.00 485.00 11 ,640.00 485.00 11,640.00 

44 MH 124to MH 125 6" 236.00 LF 30.50 7,198.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

45 MH 126 to MH end south 6" 349.00 LF 24.75 8,637.75 312.00 7,722.00 312.00 7,722.00 

46 MH 126 to MH end north 6" 136.00 LF 42.50 5,780.00 170.00 7,225.00 170.00 7,225.00 

47 MH 101 to MH 102 to Mh 103 36 342.00 LF 173.00 59,166.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

48 Pull strap 14,103.00 LF 0.75 10,577.25 4,524.00 3,393.00 7,221.00 5,415.75 

49 Protruding Tap Trimming (If Ne 2.00 EA 350.00 700.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 1,750.00 

50 Bond 1.00 LS 10,075.00 10,075.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 10,075.00 

C01.11 Add MH61oMH7toMH8 10 403.00 LF 33.00 13,299.00 0.00 0.00 403.00 13,299.00 

C01.13 Add MH 8 to MH 9 to MH 10 8 303.00 LF 42.50 12,877.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.2 Add MH 1 to MH 2 12" 18.00 LF 315.00 5,670.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.26 Add MH 20 to MH 24 8" 308.00 LF 29.75 9,163.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01 .28 Add MH 24 to MH 25 8" 365.00 LF 29.25 10,676.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.3 Add MH 2 to MH 3 1 O" 150.00 LF 54.75 8,212.50 0.00 0.00 150.00 8,212.50 

CONTINUED ... 

!Lb 



r! ~ lnsituform· 

PLEASE REMIT BY CHECK TO : 

AEGION' INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC 
P.O. BOX 74008440 

Stronger. Safer. Infrastructure: CHICAGO, IL 60674-8440 
PAGE: 5 of 5 

BILL TO: DATE: 5/26/2022 
CITY OF WASHINGTON PLEASE REMIT BY ACH TO : ESTIMATE: 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES LLC INVOICE# 688174 
405 JEFFERSON STREET BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH CUSTOMER PO: 
WASHINGTON, MO 63090 ROUTING: 111000012 

JOB NUMBER: 102852 

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N 
PAYMENT TERMS : Net 30 Days 

CONTRACT : 6"SANIT.&36"STORM CIPP,FY2021 FEDERAL ID: 13-3032158 
PROJECT: WASHINGTON MO,FY2021,REV 1 ACCOUNT: 003750825891 

ITEM CONTRACT AMOUNT COMPLETED THIS PERIOD COMPLETED TO DATE 
NO DESCRIPTION OF WORK QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT QUANTITY AMOUNT 

C01.36 Add MH 106 to MH 107 8" 221.00 LF 33.50 7,403.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.38 Add MH 108 to MH 109 to MH en 340.00 LF 29.25 9,945.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.40 Add MH 106 to MH 110 6" 114.00 LF 48.00 5,472.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.47 Add MH 28 to MH end 8" 226.00 LF 33.50 7,571.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.49 Add MH 11410 MH 120 8" 253.00 LF 31.75 8,032.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.5 Add MH 3 to MH 4 1 O" 330.00 LF 36.25 11,962.50 0.00 0.00 330.00 11,962.50 

C01.51 Add MH 120 to MH 11 10" 550.00 LF 32.00 17,600.00 0.00 0.00 550.00 17,600.00 

C01.59 Add MH 101 to MH 102 to Mh 10 342.00 LF 170.25 58,225.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.60 Add MH 102A to MH 102 8" 50.00 LF 92.00 4,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

C01.7 Add MH 4 to MH 5 1 O" 168.00 LF 49.50 8,316.00 0.00 0.00 168.00 8,316.00 

C01.9 Add MH 3 to MH 6 1 O" 421.00 LF 32.75 13,787.75 0.00 0.00 421.00 13,787.75 

TOTAL CONTRACT 757,753.45 EARNED THIS PERIOD 117,978.50 EARNED TO DATE 371,893.05 

Month Gross 
Sales Tax 
Month Retention 
Month Open 

Customer# 

117,978.50 

(5,898.93) 
112,079.57 

95404 

Sales Tax 
Less: Retainage 
Previous Estimate 

AMOUNT DUE 
THIS ESTIMATE 

18,594.66 
253,914.55 

112,079.57 

11, 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 1ti0,!~,'/.'li:,oJG~"s'!'~~!'~;o~~:~•bec:~;:~~s.;,~~~~r ~!"0%~1~i~wuy:f.l~~lti~t~~~~1l:r. ~t;'\;08~~~·:.r;~:1~0':';;i~!lf~!s'::'¥f/f~~ahig,Nia::~~i5s•fi'.'ll (l~:~~1°-'r~1!~°t, goods 
Sond111ons") shaH apply lo •ny so,llloe< piavidod wllh 1ho Goods. The P,isat lo, Sale ol Goods, thoso To,ms Md Condiliont, ScllfJl'S Wa,rnnly Cor11llcn10 and any Olhe< documonls e,p,essly ldo,~llfod In lho 
Propos.il ai co111mc1 tlocumont ,hnQ bo consldorod canlracl documorlls· refa,r d lo hO!eln as lhe ·Agreemonl".) Boyor •hall bo r;feomod 10 havo accoplod lho A roomenl, incl~ 1Mse Te,ms 3 Con(!lllO(lS11tld 
olher conlroct dorumon1•, 1h,ough tlJ do3vortng n purchase ordor or a p~, aso o,oar number 10 Soller or (II) reooipt nnd ncaoptance ol Goods or OKj payment ol ?010/'s lnv.ofe-0 1:t/,0 Goods Of (Iv/ any olll\11 w,ition 
lndkmllon by Bvya, of IIB accop1ance ol lha Torms & Coooltions. Any doaumon10 proposed by Buyor es a con11ac1 docume/'' bul nol expressly ldenl fled In 11,a Pioposal, lnoludlng 001 nol Umlled 10 •rm$ and coodllloru, 
conlolned In any purchase ordor, correspondonco 01 accompanying paymonl for doi vory or the Goods, which rue dillorem rom or in mxlillon to lhese Torms & Condlllons, snnll not bO blndi11g on Seier, whoi1101 01 nol 
lhoY would mn10,1nuy a1t01 tho ordo,, mid Sollor ho,eby obloc1s 1horo10. . . . . . . 
2.0Tlmo or Dollvery All shlpplng da!os glvon o,o opp<oxrmn10 and ool a gunrome.e ol n patllcU10! date ol shipment. Seller shall nol be hable lor losses or damages of any kind (whelher mc1dental, consequential, or 
olhorwlwJ all11bul8d lo 01 ro~ll"fl In any way lrom Se!lor's lnnbllily 10 meol lho dollvery dole eol lorth herein. 
3.0 ShlpplnglAlok or LOH Unless Buyor and So11or ogroo 01hol\'ls8c doOvo1y ol the Goods shnll bo E.X.W. 01 tho locallon set lorth heroin (tncolorms 2010 Terrns & Condilloos). Seller ohal ship 1~0 Goods 10 Buyor 
ol tho Shipping /\dd•••• by ony commorc!nUy roasonnblo means, bul lnb ·,ogulromonl dolls no, lmposo upon S0lk11 lhe duly lo make delr;ol)' ol wllh address. Seller hos IM opffon or selecliog lho prullo.;Jar rou10 nnd 
C1>11ior lor$hlpmenl ol lf,e Ooods lo Bu)'or. All lrelghl, ln:rumrn:o, 10,111, lrolQhf lo,wordlog, cusloms, carlage Md.olher lransporlalion or inck!Onlol ch,ugu• shall oo borno by Buyer. Tille to 11,e <loU<J$ 5!mll pass horn 
So!lor 10 Buyer upt,, shlpnienl or lho Goo(ls b\P any commorchillv reasonable means. 
4.0 Payment Te1m• The prtc<rand payrnonl forms lor. lhe Goods shall be set lorlh by So!or 011~0 lim.• ol a quo101lan 10 Buye, by Saller, placomonl ol on ordo1 (IO"J Buyor 10 Sollor,.1hrough nn lnvolco to Buyo, ov 
Sella, a11d/or In Seller's acl<nOwledoomont ol order 10 Buyer. All l)l!yrnont lom,s :are sublocl 10 So!lo(s credll ~p,oval as Ol lhO lator ol lhe lime ol lho oroo, and/or prkl, 10 shlpmon1. Unless othe,wlse &01 lorlh i/1 lfio 
ordj)r1 poymenls-11,0 due to Selle, fiom Buyor no lotor tllon lnlrll9dioto!y upon Buyoi's rocoiPl of nr, 1rwoice l1om S<lllor. Tfmo Is al lho osSbnco Wilh rospact lo all pnymonts. Paym•r'r!s lllol are oulstanding moro ll1u111on 
( f 01· oays lrorn lhoh rospoetlve d!Jo dnto shnU bo.v an lnl01osl rolo 01 ono and one·hnll porconl (I IS%) po, mon1n (olghloon p01con1 (1 8%1 annuoJTyJ, o< u,o mrucimuro roto ol lniorosl lhattho opPl~nble olale law allows. 
whichever Is greater, unrn fully paid, lnclurftng. 0/lY lnlorost paymenls l~oroon. In the ovonl Buyer does not pay within lhe 10,ms of tho order. all colloctlon cosls lncuuod by s..110,, lncludino attorno)'9' loos will bo paid 
l)y Buyer. 
Paymo111 lor lhe sale of Goods shall nol be subjecl lo ollset, deduolfon 01 bllck cha gos by Bur"'· /IJ1y 11<11115 lhOl have bean cloduttod ~ Buyer in vlolallon ol lhls paragraph shall bo coos!dered ove,duo nnd ore 
s11bf,)c1 lo lhe above ~norasl and allornoys loo charges. The price se1 torlh in u,e O(cfer and al paymonts duo 10 Sella, lro,n Buyo, thafl be In lhe lawlul cunoney or lhe Unllfid SIO!es ol Amoricn. No1wl1hstandlng lhe 
fo,dgolng or any to,m In lhe P1oposol1 ore101 or ocknowtedgemonl 101ho con1,ary, lo lhe extenl lhal anytlrne p,for lo shjpmoni Buyo, dons nol meel Sailor's c,0<111 approval, sane, may ol1ho1 (0 cn~l lhe o,ao,, or (Ii) 
requosl paymonl In lull lrom Buye, p,,or 10 shipment of lho Goor;I. 
5.0 Changoa 10 Goods ond/or Se1vlcos Ordor Chnngos 10 tho doslgn, sp<>cillcn. =· scope ol oulll)fy, doffvo,y schodulo, producl CIO<)lonstrallO<l allo, ahloolng ln,uucllons ol lhe equlpinon.1 or any mo1orfn! lerm ol lhe 
l\groomonl. mar only be mado upon oxoeullon by 811Y•• and So118f In wrl~ng ("Chango Ordo,1. Such Chni,go Ord8f sholl Oltole 111• p/\1Ues' ugroomont on (f!'chango in 1110 sl)Od"ficallous, designs, soopo ol work, 
dellvMy schedule Of shipping lnsl•ucf!ons ro, tho qqulpmenl, (Ill an adJusltnenl 10 lllO pulcha•a price, Md tllll on adJustmon1 In tho dale al shlpn,ont ol lho ~p,:nont <111d/or Jho po,lcd of po1lom111nco. Bllih plllilos 
agree And aclmowtodgo Olnl unfoss a Chango ()(der Is agreed upon In writing by bolh p,111fus. lh< Agroomonl shal nol Ila modlned In any mAMOt. In tl(l(.llllon, Sollu1 has lhe 1lght 10 suspend performance dutfng tho 
period wl,llo lhe ohangu f• befnQ ova!vatod and nuuollulod. 
In lhe evenl Buyor h s co,,~uunlcaled p,oposod chan~os to Seller, Seller, at lis sale dlscrollon, shall olthOI to) ru:cup11ho C11011go 01do , lb) 1ejoc111,u Chango Order and conllnue parto,ma,,ce under lhe exlsllng 
/\g,eomorn; or 10) cancol lho /lgroornonl, In lho 0\1Bnl 1h01 Sellar eloclll (b) abo~o 8uyor shall ollho, (I) agroe to corurnuo porlo,n,arrcu (of So!la1J pu(Guenl .lo tho AgroomGnt or (ill onncol lho A,g,eemen1. 
(;,0 lnspootlon and Rofoollon; Acooptonco Buyor o/131 lnOJl<lCI !ho GOO<lo fmmodlnloly upo,1 l~e!J orrivil! e.l lho Shipping /\dd,oss and •hull. wilhln 1h1oe (31 d•Y• ol aoeh arrlvilf. provldo w,111on notlco 10 Sol',or ol Ar\)' 
dnlm 1001 lho Goods a,o non,.onlormlnR or 01ho111Aso dolocllvo. In OldOf lo bo ·olloatloo, Su/lo, n1ust ~ lhe no1lco wilhln lhroo {3) dOf.8 or 1~0 oollvo1y ol 1ho Goods. Buyo.r agroos lhat s~ch 1hroo (31 dny fl<l•lod ,s 
a ,onsonoblo limo lcr lnspocllon ot lho Ooods end nollllcotlon lharool. and lolluro ol. Buyer 10 provl<Jo such w,il(on nollco wllhln Iha 1hroo \3) day jlflrlod shall conslllulo a~ l11evoca1ll0 accepJanco of Iha Good,, 1hereby 
walv!no Buyor's 1lgh1s 10 m1y and ell cl ms 1egrudlr,g the OOCl!pled GQO(ls. Ul)Cn 9,ryer's w,luo.r, notk:010 S.,llo.r cl any nonconlonrilna or Olhaiwbo dolocllvo Goods In tho limo ?fl)Vldod he1oln, SoUor has Iha opllon ol 
wpalrfng andlo, roplacln!I Iha nonconforming or olh111Wlso dolocllvo Goods v1r111!n a reasonably p1omp1 time. In lhe ovonl Sollor repairs ef)d/or replaces Iha Goods, Buyo, l!!l•OOS lhis ,epalr and/or repincomoru shall be 
mo Buyor's solo ,emedy 'lo/ tho nonconlorrnJr,g o, olhorwlso dolocllvo Goods II Se"or does not ropatr nndlor replaca the nonconlonnlng or 01horw[90 cl<llac1lvo Goooo, Soller shnll PfOvldo Buyor wilh o rotund 
oqulvo1ont 10 1'1e docioasod voluo ol lho OoouG. In lhe ovont Sonor p,ovidos Buyor v,th a relund, Buyor nnroe, lhlo rofond shall bo lho Buyor's oolo remedy lo, lhe nonconforming or 01hoiwl•• dolec:fivo Ooods. In no 
8\1801 shni Buyor be requhed lo ropal1, rnp1oco or relmb<J,so Buyer lor rnora lhan Iha part or molerlal lllot Is found to be defoctlve. Tho Goods, os n wholo shall nal bo cons~~od lo bO a "pnrl' or·ma10•lnf IOI' 1ho 
purpose ol the preceding senlonce. Buyer hereby walvos lho ,lghl 10 ony dnm"gos !or nonconforming or 01hel\Ylse delecllvo Goods nol provldod horoln, ei,yor shall 1io1,01lljn any Goods wllhoul Seller's consenl. 
Fn,ura 10 give w1111en notice of any noncontorrnlno or delocllvo Goods1•nll1ln three (3) dnys, express 01~1 or wrlllen acceptarico ol lho Goods, and/or payment lor n,o Goods, Sllan eonctuslvely eslabllsh Buyer's 
occoptn.neo 01 u,o Good'a, 1olon110 1}\D SolkJr 1,om M)' o.nd Gii llabUdy, find woJvo Buyor'a rlgt",t to seek damages or other ,amedio.11 for any noriconforn1lng Ot 01horwiae dalocuva Good:.. 8uye1r shall bear the expenses 
ol lnspocllon undor all c~cumstoncos. 
7.0 Llmflod \Vomrnly SELLER'S WP.RRAIHY OllllGAT!ONS ARE PROVloE·o IN SELLER'S WARRANTY CERTIFICATE/ ATTACHED ANO INCORPORATED HEREIN IIV REFERENCE. SELLER 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. ANY WA!IRANTV PROVIDED N THIS SECTION SHALL ONLY BE IN FAVOR OF BUYER, ANO SHALL APPLY 
DURING ANO EX.PIRE ON THE LAST DAY OF THE WARRANTY PERIOD. THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN THE FlRST SENTENCE IS !N LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES'(EXCEPT OF TITLE), 
EXPRE. SS, IMPLIED OR STATUTOR.Y. WITHOUT.LtMITINO THE GENERI\LITY OF THE IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING SENTENCE, SELLER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS AND NEGATES (I) ANY IMPLlEO OR 
EXPRESS WARRANTY OF ME.RCHP.NTABILITY (2) ANY IMPLIED OR EXPRESS WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE 13) ANY-IMPLIED OR EXPRESS WARRANTY OF CONFORMITY 
TO MODELS OR SAMPLES, ANO (4) All OTHER LIABILITY, EITHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, STRICT LIABILITY (WHETHER FOUNDED IN SECTION 402(A) OF THE 
RESTATEMENT OF TORTS OR Otl-lERIYISE) AND NEGLIOENCE. In oddfllon lo tho foragolng: 
(1) Tho V/orronty shall nol apply (I) fo Ooods whloh hovo been ropolrod or allo,od by ony Par.son. othor lhon lho Soller, (II) to Goods which hovo boon eubloolod to uso beyond ra1od condlllont, 
unroosoneblo uao, negligence, or acoldanf, (Ill) to Oaoda which hnva been damaged beoause of their use or the use of any other n,afe~ale or equ!pmont allor Buyor, 01 any olhor Person, hos or 
reasonably shou ld havo hod know!odgo of lhe dole<>!, (lv to Goods manufactumd fab,lcoted or assomblod by •nr, Porson 0U1or lhon Seller, end (v) Seller's odvlsary 80rvlc88 (II any) lo Buyo,. 
(2)The Wa111m1y ohall nol bo effeol!va unless Soller ce v •s 8 written clolm lherolo,e wllhln th reo (3) days afler I ,e dlscovory ol 1ho dolool wllh re,poc l 10 which a claim Is mado and prcvldod Jho 
dOJau111s discovered wllhln lhe Warranty Period. 
(3) If Buyer esaorla • claim under tho War/only, S.llor hes the opllon to vorlly, with Its own ropro•ontotlves, lho notu10 and o,te,11 c f tho dolocl co111plotnod ol p1lor 10 the time lhot the Goods are returned 
fo Snlfor. Upon wiltlon ,~uni by Soller Buyar shell a! Ila own risk and expense promptly ralu,n lho <.loods In quosllon lo S.,llor's Plon1. 
(41 Buyor's romodlfla tor bra.ch or ony \Varronly oro dmllod lo tho romodlao provldod In Section 7.0. BUVER EXPRESSLY AGREES SUCH REMEDIES ARE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR 
IIAEACH OF ANY WMRANTY PROVIDED HEREIN. 
8.0 Forco MoJoure II SoUor 1, doloyoo al any IIITJO by lho aclO or omissions ol Buyor, b)'. Changu 0,dcrs. or by any Force Ma)eu,o.dellned l)elow, lhen Iha po,lod or p8!formanoo shal bo O><IOndll<l, IM del vory ol 
Gooos roschodulod and lhe price oqullably ndjusled 10 ,oliecl lhe elrecls al delay ~n Sello1's cosis. 'Forco Malou/0' moans drcums1ances boyond 1he ,especilvo pMfGs roasonabfo cont1ol, lnofudlng wllhoul 
llfnll, tlon, aclS of God, oots ol publk: OJten,ios, war,, olhet hostllltles. blO(~Ddes, in1u11ocllons, ,Iota, opldamlcs, quarentlno reslriollons, lloods, unavallabillly ol compononl& or tupplfes, llghlning, fire. atorrno. 
oartnquaKOS, waohou1s. arrll$1s, rostrn nls al iulers and poopio, civ~ dilllurbancoo, oc1s 01 M Y govolnmontnl or local aulhorlly, arid MY olhor acls and onusos, not within rho 0011lrol ol 1ho pally clal,nlng excuse f1om 
porfo,manoo. whleh by 1ho exerclso ol duu dlllgonce ond roo,onablo comnierclel aff"'1, Jllal pally shell nol have been nbjo 10 lo,osoe. avoid er ovO{como. 
9.0 Dofeull; Cancollallon II Buyor loirs 10 POflo,m any ol ijs obffQlltlons herottnder, lnc::,'w.ucf'ng wi1hou1 umilollon, lalluro 10 makap'!)'monls as p,ovidod hMoln or olhorw;so, or K Buyel llliJs.to promplly givo ,easonable 
assumnoes ol lu1vre peilormanoe l'lhen 1oquos1ed by Seller, 1hon Selror may. upoo five (5 days' w,llten notice 10 Buyo,. dednro euyor 10 bO In dofnull and Sene, may suspend perlorm.,nca ol ils obligaUons herourlder 
wl1houl lloblUty and ,otnln oll 1luh1s ond refT\8<11os Seller may possoss a1 law, In equjly or as provided In lhoso Terms & Conditions. 
In oddition 10 lho remodl&s above, to lho ox1on1 thnl (IJ So!lor dedares o dalaull unde, this Section 9.0 or (u) II tho 01der Is oencehod lor any ,oason, olhe, than (a) dolru,11 by Seder o, \bl Foreo Mnlou,e, Buyer ag,eos 10 
pay Seller on demand, a minimum ol: tOO"t. Ol lhe quolod price lor nny Goods for vmiol1 Seller has oommonced work, r&gerdless ol wholhor such Good Is complolod; plvs, a cani:o!lll Ion loe ot'25o/, ol Jho AQroomenl 
amoun1; plus, any chargos for packing nnd/or s101lr,g any of lho aloremenllonod Goods. 
!O.O SIOf! Work/Susponolon II Soller is unablo lo JlfO(Oed wllh lhe manufacture and shipmen! ol Buy!l('s orde,. eilh8f dua 10 Buyer's ruquest oras 1110 d!rocl rosull ol pQvo111menlitl nellon or 'Oil. ulollons, Buye1 will 
upon no1,11co11on lo l.hul ollocl in'rnecf!<llely .lnst,uct Seller 10 consider Buye(s order as cornplolod In Ks 1hen stalO of panlol C<Jmplolion In Vil>lch Solle, win: ( t) Stop an work on Uto ordor at ·prompoy as roasonablo 
possible: (2j Slo,e nll llnishod and unnnlshed Hems 001 isted In Sollllfs Slandard price 11s1s end any slandard Item whlah canno, bo u,od, 1 lhal lime to fill anoll,or o,dar. (3! lovolce SePer ro, 001:iblishod or quoted 
prices lo, al complalod ilom,;, and lor fncomplolo iloms lhe lull C<JSIS ina.rr1ed by Soller plus 25%, plus chruge lo, pooJ\ing ond.s10<lno; (~J Ao nBfalo Bwol's ordorlnl So\lor s oplio11, ol lho Ol!r~ost po,lslblo dole, subjool 
lo Buyers nC<Joptanco ol prices, loims, and shipping schedule quoted prior lo such ,e1nst~1omon1; nod (5) Allow BuyOI opp,op,lalo crcd,1 lo, pnria ~eld In alo,eoe rY/ Sellar as Buyofs p,opo,ly II :IOCh pa,is car, oo used 
In lilUng Buyot's 1o!ns101od o,dor. 
11,0 !ndemnlflca,1on TO TtJE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, BUYER /\OREES TO DEFEND INDEMNIFY /\NO HOLD SELLER FREE AND HARMLESS FROM AND AGIIINST ANY AND ALL 
l.1 1\BILITY 1\NO ANY AND ALL LOSSES. COSTS (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION. TliE COSTS OFlmo/\TION OR OTHER DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND ATTORNEY'S FEES!. CLAIMS ANO CAUSES OF 
ACTIONS IN FAVOA OF /\NY AND /\L.L PEflSONS /\RISING OUT OF'rRESUL TING FRO~ OR IN ANY WAY ATTRIBUTED TO THE USE OR OPERATION OF THE GOODS OR ANY,OEVICE., Mi\TERIAL,._ OR 
THING OF WHICH THE OOODS./\RE MADE A PART OR TO WHICH HE GOODS OR Ar I ACHED OR WITHIN THE GOODS ARE ENClOSED, WHILE IN BUYER'S POSSESSION OR SUB;,EOUENT Tl, /\NY 
TA/\NSFER OF POSSESSION TO ANY THIRD P/\A~_EXCEPT TO THE Ex.TENT SELLER IS NEGLIGENT. IN THE EVENT ANY PROVISION CONTAINED HEREIN SHALL. FOR /\NY REASON, BE MELD TO 
BE ILLEOAL, INVALID, OR OTHERWISE UNENFORCt;ABLE, ANY REMAINING PROVISIONS SHALL NOT BE /\FFECTEO OR IMPAIRED TtlEREBV. 
12.0 Limitation of Llablllm IN NO EVENT SHAU SELLER OR ITS AFFILIATES BE LI/\BLE TO BUYER. ITS /\FFILIATES, SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, VENDEES OR TRANSFEREES, OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY, 
FOR ANY ECONOMIC LO S, PHYSICAL HARM. INCIDENTAL. CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMIIGES (INCLUDtr.lG WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSS OF PROFITS ANO/OR LOSS OF BUSINESS 
OPPORTUNITIES) ARISI GOUT OF. RESULTING FROM OR AELATINO IN Af.lY WAY TO THIS AGREEMENT OFI /\CTS OR OMISSIONS OF SELLER IN CONNECTION THEREWITH (INCLUDING, W!TliOUT 
LIMITATION, THE PERFORMANCE. WHETHER TIMELY OFI NOT, OR NONPERFORMANCE OF THIS /\GREEM ENT ANO THE LOSS OF OR THE LOSS OF USE OF ANY OF THI: GOODS OR OTHER 
PROPERTY, REGARDLESS OF WHETMER THE GOODS OR THE USE OF THE GOODS RESULTS IN OAMIIGE Oil H/\RM ONLY TO THE GOODS OR TO OTHER PROPERTY!. IN THE EVENT ANY 
PROVISION CONTAINED HERElr.1 SHALL, roR Ar.lY REASON, Blc HELD TO 8E ILlEG/\L, INVALID. OR OTHERWISE UNENFORCEABLE. ANY REMAINING PROVISIONS SHALL NOT BE AFFECTED OR 
IMPAIREO THEREBY. 
13.0 For me Fo,matlon, and Readju6tmon1 01 tlro Ag1eoniun1 Buyu, and S. onu, adioo\Yledge lhls Agreernon1, lnqudlr,g allachmeots and ••h!bils lncorpor,iled horain by 1oluror1C11, rop,osor>l lho onUro agroomon, ond 
unders1aoo<ng f>e1wooo 1he partlos, lncorpomllng all Pflor negollatlons and und0fs1an<1lr,gs relaling 10 lho subjOCI mat1c, horoof, wholhor wrllton or orel No changes Of mOdim:atlons In lerrns shall be acco~lod unlo,& 
in v/rillng and slgnod by authon>Od ropresontalivos of bOlh pa,,ros. The pallles agrea Iha! !his /\greoment was JotnUy drafled. nogoUalod a/Id agrood upon nllor ronson~blo limo lo rovlew It, lorm, nr,d oondillcns. 
Thoroloro, lhls /\groomonl ohoD be coru,truod neilher nprunnt nor In fo.vor ol oru,or Party, bu1 shall bo OORslrood In• noulral mnnnM. In lho event ony provisian ot lorrns ol lhl• Agroomenl i,; rundulod lnvaHd, "logol, m 
olholWlse onlo,coob:o, 1ho romolndo• ol tho Agronmoo will ,omoln vnlld nnd fully enlorceablo. 
14,0 Tfmo Llmltotlons of Acl\ona /\ny acllon by Buyer lor an oQogod breach o warronty, b<each ol con1roc1, or 1011 ruising out al or rela!od lo lhis Agroomonl shall be oommenced no laler lhan one year aller lhe 
cause Ol lho nalton awuea. JI Buyer lai!s lo commonce ony such acllon within one year nf1t1r lho causo ol QC.lion aoc,uos, Iha action shaU bo deemed bnirod and any rOlblOd claims waived, and Seller and its Arfiliales 
shall havo no llnblllty who.ltloovo, to Buyer wllh r·ospecl 1here10. 
15,0 SuccoHors 1nd Assigns ThlsAgresment sha~ be binding upon and Inure lo lhe beoelil ol lhe parlies and lhelr respeclive successors and assigns. However, lhis Agreemenl may nol be assigned by Iha Buyer 
wi1hou1 p,lo/, wrluon C<Jnson1 OI lho Sellor. 
16.0 No11co /\U nollcos and communlool!ons required by lhis /\groomont !lhllll bo dfillverod, fn wrldng, lo lho ad9re,s ol l~o Soffer listed oo tho proposal. 
17.0 Dispute Rcsolullon; Prevolllng Pony; Govomlng Low Any and an cllsputes, claims or con1rovorslea nrlslllg 001 cl Of' ,olnllni;i lo Ill's /\greomon1, or Iha bleach lhOJOOI, nnd not ,esolved amk:abl(. slmll be llnnlly 
sollled lri lhO lod<lrnl cou,i, of lho Slafo ol Texas loaalod In Houslon, Texas. In any liflQolion proceodlng pu1suan11011,;s I\Qrrlilme,11 1ho previ'.lllino parly sllilll 1ocovo, l101n 1110 ulher PllrlY an rensonab o onomoys· 
loss, and oUaer expenses in connocilorl wllll such p,oceodlng. Tim prevalllog perly Is a party wl,o recovers al leasl 75% allls IOlal claims h• Jl,e ar:tlon, or w110 Is 1oqul10<1 10 pay no mere lhan 25'1'. ol 1ho clhcr pany's 
Iola! claim In lhe acllon. 
18.0 Conlfdontla!IIV All lniorma!ioo, ln<:ludlnn quotallano, seocllicotlons, dra'!!nga, p1ln1e, s.chomallcs, and any Olhor onglneorlng, loehnlce! Of' pricing <lain or Information submlllOd bl Seller lo Buyer relnlod to any 

~~f~~~0
,~:.,irhl~J ;.W!'!~~a.:..,angCir:.~ ~::rr~~:::,:i~n p~:!~~::;; 

0
~J~~fio.':~~.'\f."6"!no:=u~~r~',~%1~ r.~:~·· ~r :;;'r...~:3::t,~.'~~r.r:n~: ~Xo"!d~~oso Sellers conlidenlial and p(Oj)fielary 

19.0. To~os, P01m\ll, f.,.a, laws Unless oxp1oss!y slalod olhorwiso In iellet's Proposal, lhe l)Vrc,t,oso PIIOO 10, lho ~ood• r..':n~hed b~o~or excludes all govommonfal o, btokoregu 1a~os, d<llfos
1 
loos. c/larooo 01 

assessmenlS. SoDer may eleGl 10 add any such laxes, <lulies, foes, charges or assessmonls lo the Invoice amounl payable lo Soller by er. Buyor musl p,ovido S•llorwilh documontalltm acceplaclo 10 Sefior ol ony 
o,cmpllons -Claimed from 1a.o~ dutlos, pe/mllS, loes, charges or ossessmenl& In advanco. E•cepl lo Jhe extenl expres&ly assomod by So IOI, Buvor shall socuio and pay lor n!I poimllS !Ind foos noccs,ol)' 101 U10 
delivery and 1ns1aUallon ol lho "'oods arid/or oqulpmon1 Into which 1ho Goods are Installed. II ls 8uye(s duty lo osoo,1ttin that lh• Goods PfOposed by Soller and their subsequonl ins!allalion ood use is In accordance 
wllh appllcablo local laws. Slalues. ordinances and building codes ("laws"). Seller shall not be responslbll! lo, compliance of lhe Goods or equlpmenl ln10 ,vhloh tho Goods Mi loslalled 10 such laws, bul shall lo lhe 
01<1001 ,easonnhl), possible, p,Clflptly ncl,ly Buyer of at1y d[s,:rnpancies b<oughl 10 Selle(s altenlion. 
211.0 Law; Safety Sto~dards Tho Buyer an~ en<l usor ruo lh~arllos rosponslble under lhe lorms ol all appllcnble Feoerol, stale, local and ,eglonal laws aflf)ficabfo to lho sale ol Goods h>dudlng lhe Oco.,p.llonal 
Hoallh Md Safely /\Cl of t 970, a, lhe fnduswal safely laws a lonbla 10 tho facf ly whore !he Goods are lnslalledl,!o ensu,e 1h.o Goods n4l(I tho cqulpmo111 l,ilo which tho Goods ore ll)stolled moot such rcqulromonts, 
and Soller hereby rftnclnlms aoy fl/lbillty forany violollono ol I o /\Cl or olhor appllcoblo or roguiaUon law lhuf may o lmposod rospocllng tho Goods fuinl!lhed undo, aoy sale. 13!,tyor shall lraln, roq!llie nod cause Us 
employees 10 ~) comply wllh dl(oclion, sol forth In mainlonnn<:o, st1lo1y and oporollon lnslrucllons, manuals1 drawings, sale1r notloos and warnings and othor lnslrutllons that mlgl11 bo lurnlshod by Soller; (ll) use, 
,aasonable care and all saloly equlpmom and appllcnblo salely guords OJ1d 5'1foly systems In the sol,up, nojustrl\11111, oporalon ond maintenance and repa1, ol lhe Good• and lho oquipmonl lnlo whlcil 1110 Goods are 
Installed; (Ill) not ,oroovo, or po,/nll anyono 10 r01novo aoy safoly equlpmen1, sale1y fealUle or womlng signs rrom lh8 Goods and the equlpmenl 1~10 which lhe GOOds n,o lnc1ntl0d no, pormangntly ,omo,e or dlsnblo 
MY ouard, 01.snloly toa1uro,: and (Iv) nssuro lhol lho Good, ond tho equlpnionl lnlo whld> lhe Goo<fs are loatn!lod oro uood In nccc1danco Wilh all oppllcable ltiwn, ,ogulnllons. oustomo. pe1mllo end 11a1,dords In (orco. 
21 .0W~lvor Toe !allure ol Seller to i!sist upoo slrict pertormanco herein shan 001 constllu18 a waiver or

1
.,. os1~ppa1 "IJDinsl, osserUng lho rlghl lo roqul,e S\/Ch porlor111aroo ~' U,o luluro, nor shn!I a waiver or 0£loppo1 

In any ono lnSlanco con,lllule • waiver 01 osloppel <vilh ro~))OC1 lo n 1a1or bionch of n slmlta, nn1u,e or· 01 ,orvAso. 
22.0 Mlso. The UNCITRAt Conyenlian on Coi1t<ac1S !011ho lntornnUonal Sela ot Goods •hall not apply lo lhe v.tlidf1y. cons11uC1ion and porformanco ol 1hls Con1rae1 . 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 24, 2022 

To the City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, Missouri 

Dear Council Members: 

636-390-1000 www.washmo.gov 

I herewith submit for your approval the following for appointment to 
the Board of Adjustment: · 

Lori Strubberg (alternate)- term expiring Sept. 2027 

Respectfully submitted, 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 31, 2022 

City Council 
City of Washington 
Washington, Missouri 63 090 

Dear Council Members: 

636-390-1000 www.washmo.gov 

I herewith submit for your approval the following for appointment to the 

Washington Area Highway Transportation Committee: 

Sandy Lucy - term ending August 2025 

Respectfully Submitte , 

J::;~t:m 
Mayor 

2b 



BILL NO. _______ _ INTRODUCED BY ____ _ 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY OF 
WASHINGTON, MISSOURI TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FROM 
GEORGE L. CRAWFORD AND ASSOCIATES D/B/ A CBB FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ASSOCIATED WITH THE HIGHWAY 
100 AND RABBIT TRAIL TRAFFIC ANALYSIS AND CMAQ 
APPLICATION AND AMEND THE 2022 BUDGET 

Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Washington, Missouri, as follows: 

SECTION 1: The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to accept the proposal 

from George L. Crawford and Associates D/B/ A CBB for Professional Services 

associated with the Highway 100 and Rabbit Trail Traffic Analysis and CMAQ 

Application in the City of Washington, Missouri. A copy of the proposal is attached and 

is marked as "Exhibit A". 

SECTION 2: This ordinance shall amend the 2022 Budget as follows: 

Transportation Sales Tax Fund 261 - Increase of $15,000 Highway 100 and Rabbit Trail 

Traffic Analysis - Design (261-18-000-541100 Improvements other than Buildings). 

SECTION 3: The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute said contract, and to do all things necessary by the terms of said contract. 

SECTION 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed. 



SECTION 5: This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after 

its passage and approval. 

Passed: ________ _ _ 

AITEST: --------- President of City Council 

Approved: _ ___ ____ _ 

ATTEST:_~~~~~~~ 
Mayor of Washington, Missouri 



"Exhibit A" 

TRANSPORTATION 
ENGINEERS+ PLANNERS 

August 15, 2022 

Mr. John Nilges, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, Missouri 63090 

RE : Proposal for Traffic Analysis and CMAQ Application 
Highway 100 at International Avenue/Rabbit Trail 
Washington, Missouri 
CBB Proposal No. P22-117 

Dear Mr. Nilges: 

SINCE 1973 

cbbtraffic.com 

In accordance with your request, CBB is pleased to submit the following proposal for traffic 
engineering services pertaining to an updated evaluation of the intersection of Highway 100 
with Rabbit Trail Drive/International Avenue and the nearby Phoenix Center Drive connection 
in Washington, Missouri. This proposal also includes engineering services to assist the City in 
preparing a CMAQ application for the improvements at the intersection of Highway 100 with 
Rabbit Trail Drive/International Avenue and the proposed relocation of Phoenix Center Drive. 

As you are aware, CBB previously counted the intersection of Highway 100 and International 
Avenue/Rabbit Trail Drive in February 2021 and provided a study summarizing the intersection 
operations and potential improvement measures to address congestion and safety concerns at 
the intersection. Several potential solutions were identified as part of that study. It is our 
understanding that the City desires to move forward with Solution "A" (as identified in your 
letter to the Council dated June 28, 2022) which includes the following: 

• Relocate Phoenix Center Drive farther south away from the Highway 100 with Rabbit 
Trail Drive/International Avenue intersection; 

• Install a southbound right-turn lane on International Avenue at Highway 100; 

• Install a westbound right-turn lane on Highway 100 at Rabbit Trail Drive/International 
Avenue;and 

• Construct ADA and sidewalk improvements at the Highway 100 with Rabbit Trail 
Drive/International Avenue intersection. 

• 
• 12400 Olive Boulevard, Suite 430, Saint Louis, Missouri 63141 T: 314.878.6644 l 

720 Olive Street, Suite 170 I 
Saint Louis, MO 63101 

119 South Main Street 
Saint Charles, MO 63301 

4741 Central Street #1354 
Kansas City, MO 64112 

340 Regency Centre 
Collinsville, IL 62234 



Proposal for Traffic Analysis and CMAQ Application 
Washington, Missouri 

August 15, 2022 
Page2 

The 2021 study was based on traffic counts collected in February 2021 before the bank and 
Starbucks in the southwest corner of the intersection opened. As such, new traffic counts would 
be collected at the study intersections and the analyses updated accordingly. 

The intent of this work is to: 

• Conduct field observations and collect current traffic counts; 

• Identify how the proposed improvements would operate and compare to the existing 
conditions; and 

• Assist city staff in: 
o Coordinating with East West Gateway staff, 
o Developing a construction cost estimate, and 
o Preparing the CMAQ application. 

CBB will complete the online CMAQ Grant application for the proposed project including input 
from the City and MoDOT. CBB will transmit final hardcopies to the City, and the City will 
acquire the necessary signatures and deliver/submit the signed application to East-West 
Gateway. 

Scope of Work 

Updated Traffic Counts and Analysis 

1. CBB will coordinate with City staff as required throughout the project via conference calls 
and meetings. We also anticipate meetings with East West Gateway to discuss project 
eligibility for CMAQ funding. Specifically, the attached fee estimate includes two meetings. 

2. Review crash data provided by MoDOT and/or the City for the Highway 100/Rabbit Trail 
Drive and Rabbit Trail Drive/Phoenix Center Drive/Existing Bank Drive intersections. Ideally, 
crash data summaries for a period of three years (i.e. 2019-2020-2021) would be provided. 

3. Perform turning movement counts during the morning (7:00 - 9:00 a.m.), midday (11:30 a.m. 
- 1:30 p.m.) and afternoon (4:00 - 6:00 p.m.) peak periods of a typical weekday at the 
following intersections: 

• Highway 100 and Rabbit Trail Drive; 

• Rabbit Trail Drive and Phoenix Center Drive/Existing Bank Drive; and 

• Rabbit Trail Drive and Planet Fitness Drive. 

4. Perform capacity analyses using SYNCHRO 11 during the AM, Midday and PM peak periods 
for the intersections noted in Task 3 assuming both the existing conditions and the 
proposed improvement plan. 

7o. 



Proposal for Traffic Analysis and CMAQ Application 
Washington, Missouri 

August 15, 2022 
Page3 

5. Prepare a written report documenting our findings and conclusions for inclusion in the 
CMAQ application. 

Concept Drawing and Cost Estimate 

6. Prepare a concept drawing depicting the proposed improvement plan. The concept would 
be redline schematics drawn over publicly available aerial photos. 

7. Prepare an opinion of probable costs for the proposed improvement plan. The estimate will 
include costs that will be used to request funding from EWGCC for funding, including an 
estimate of engineering fees to complete the final roadway and traffic signal plans (PE) as 
well as for Construction Engineering (CE). 

Assistance with Grant Application 

8. Prepare the online grant and supporting documentation as described below including a 
project location map, Opinion of Probable Costs and project schedule. 

9. Discuss the draft version of the grant with the City and MoDOT and make any necessary 
revisions. 

10. Complete the online grant and supporting documents. Provide final grant application to 
the City for signatures and their submittal. 

Responsibilities 

CBB anticipates preparing the following sections of the grant application: 

• General project application and narratives; 

• Location map; 
• Photos of current conditions; 

• Conceptual drawing; 

• Conceptual typical section; 
• Crash Summaries; 

• Opinion of Probable Costs; 

• Project schedule; and 
• Also, request a letter of permission/support from owner of facility (MoDOT). 

The City of Washington would be responsible to provide the materials necessary to complete 
the following sections required for the application: 

• Support letters (City Council Resolution, Police Department, School District, Ambulance 
District, Fire Department, adjacent land owners, etc.); 

1o.. 



Proposal for Traffic Analysis and CMAQ Application 
Washington, Missouri 

August 15, 2022 
Page4 

• Project application fee: It is our understanding that the local agencies are typically 

required to pay an application fee equal to one half of one percent of the federal funds 

requested; 

• Title VI Certification signatures and Pre-Questionnaire; and 

• Signatures for Financial Certification of Matching Funds, Person of Reasonable Charge 
form, and Reasonable Progress and Right-of-Way Certification. 

Fees 

We propose to perform the above work on a lump sum basis for the following fees: 

Updated Traffic Counts and Analysis $4,700.00 

Concept Drawing and Cost Estimate $5,900.00 

Assistance with Grant Application $4,000.00 

Total Fee: $14,600.00 

Any tasks in addition to those specifically described above would be billed as extras using the 
attached time and material rates. However, no additional services would be performed 
without your prior approval or direction. 

Extra Costs and/or Supplemental Services 

The above fees do not include costs for public presentations, supplemental analyses, survey 
work, preparation of right-of-way plats or easement descriptions, pavement marking and/or 
roadway signage plans, traffic signal timing or programming, traffic signal construction 
drawings, interconnect plans, traffic control plans (if required), roadway plans, construction 
staking, construction phasing, and/or construction review. If requested, we would provide 
supplemental proposals for these or other additional services. 

In the absence of a contract for additional services, any tasks in addition to those specifically 
proposed above would be billed as extras on a time and materials basis using the attached fee 
schedule. However, no additional work would be performed without your direction or 
authorization. 

Invoicing and Payment 

We will invoice you monthly for any additional services, and you agree to pay for these services 
within 30 days of the date of the invoice. You agree to pay all expenses incurred by CBB 
including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs and interest at the legal rate to collect 
any amount due under the terms of this agreement. Further, you agree to limit our liability to 
you due to any negligent act, errors, or omissions such that the total aggregate liability of our 
firm shall not exceed $30,000. 



Acceptance 

Proposal for Traffic Analysis and CMAQ Application 
Washington, Missouri 

August 15, 2022 
Pages 

If the proposed scope of services, fees, payment terms and limits of liability described above meet 
your approval, please sign and return this letter for final execution in our St. Louis, Missouri office. 
A copy of the fully executed contract will be returned to you for your records. 

We look forward to working with you on this project. Should there be any questions regarding 
this proposal, please contact me at 314-449-9572 or swhite@cbbtraffic.com. 

Sincerely, 

~ W)..uAJ LJA:> 
S~ ai White, P.E., PTOE 
Associate - Senior Traffic Engineer 

1o. 



Proposal for Traffic Analysis and CMAQ Application 
Washington, Missouri 

August 15, 2022 
Page6 

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY COMPLIES WITH ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THIS 
AGREEMENT; FINAL EXECUTION OF THIS PROPOSAL WILL BE IN OUR ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 
OFFICE: 

Signature Date 

Printed Name Title 

Entity 

ACCEPTING FOR GEORGE L. CRAWFORD AND ASSOCIATES D/B/A CBB IN OUR ST. LOUIS, 
MISSOURI OFFICE: 

Signature 

Printed Name 

Contact Information 
Mr. John Nilges, P.E. 
Phone: 636-390-1015 
Email: jnilges@washmo.gov 

Date 

Title 

Proposal Number: P22-117 



Classification 

Sr. Principal 

Principal 

Senior Engineer 
Senior Engineer 
Senior Engineer 
Senior Engineer 

Senior Engineer 
Senior Planner 
Project Engineer 
Project Engineer 

Project Engineer 
Project Engineer 
Project Engineer 

Project Planner 
Staff Engineer 

Staff Engineer 

Staff Engineer 
Staff Engineer 

Staff Planner 

Jr. Engineer 

Proposal for Traffic Analysis and CMAQ Application 
Washington, Missouri 

August 15, 2022 
Page 7 

2022 FEE SCHEDULE* 
For Contracted Services 

Level V 
Level IV 
Level Ill 

Level II 
Level I 
Level I 
Level V 

Level IV 
Level Ill 
Level II 

Level I 
Level I 
Level IV 
Level Ill 

Level II 
Level I 

Level I 

Houri~ Rate 

$225.00 
$200.00 
$195.00 
$190.00 
$185.00 
$180.00 
$175.00 
$165.00 
$165.00 
$160.00 
$155.00 
$150.00 
$145.00 
$140.00 
$130.00 
$125.00 
$120.00 
$115.00 
$115.00 
$95.00 

Senior CADD Designer $100.00 
CADD Tech Level Ill $95.00 
CADD Tech Level II $85.00 
CADD Tech Level I $80.00 
Construction Inspector $90.00 
Field Tech 

Field Tech 
Senior Admin. 

Marketing Spec. 

Mileage 

Special Prints or Plan Sheets 

Overnight Mail/Express 
Miscellaneous 

Level II $90.00 
Level I $70.00 

$100.00 
$90.00 

Other Direct Costs (ODC) 

• Note: Effective January 1, 2022 

IRS Standard Rate/Mile 
Actual Cost 

Actual Cost 
Actual Cost 

Rates subject to change January 1 of each calendar year. 



405 Jefferson Street, Washington, MO 63090 

August 30, 2022 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Washington 
405 Jefferson Street 
Washington, MO 63090 

RE: Rabbit Trail/Hwy 100/ Phoenix Center Drive 
CMAQ Application/ Traffic Study 

Honorable Mayor and City Council, 

The following is pertinent information to the subject request. 

Description: 

636-390-1080 www.washmo.gov 

Previously, the City Council authorized the Engineering Department to prepare for, and apply for, and 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grant in the next EW Gateway grant cycle. The 
application would be for the subject intersection. 

CBB completed a Level of Service review of the intersection in 2021. That study looked into how the 
intersection was currently functioning and what options there were to improve the intersection. After 
receiving the results, staff worked towards finding a solution that mitigates issues. 

After the 2021 traffic analysis was complete, it was announced that Starbucks was to be the commercial 
tenant. This was not factored into the 2021 study. Furthermore, this contract would look at the effects 
of adding a turn lane on WB Hwy 100 and a turn lane on SB International. 

Once the study is updated with the new information, CBB would complete additional concept drawings 
with estimates, and will assist with completing the CMAQ application to EW Gateway. We anticipate the 
application deadline to be in mid-February of 2023 with an announcement of award in late spring of 
2023. Should we be fortunate enough to be awarded the grant, construction would be in 2026-2027. 

Cost of the project: 
DESIGN costs ......................... .................. ..... ....... ........................... .. $14,600.00 

1o. 



Budget Information: 

This was not budgeted in 2022 and will require a budget amendment to the Transportation Sales Tax 
Fund. 

A budget amendment of: Expense: $15,000.00 

As always, if you have any questions, concerns or would like additional information, please feel free to 
contact me. 

Respectfully, 

Jot s.PE . / 
Public Works Director 



WASTE CONNECTIONS 
Connect with the Future· 

Customer Care: 636-321-2100 

Single Stream Recycling Acceptable Items 

0 

Require111 •nts: lt 1 1 · 1 ed ob de, n of fo d ,. · , ky and fr of 
non-recyclable materials. NO plastic bags, plastic film, Styrofoam, yard 
waste, etc. DO O BLOCK OT R with vehicle, etc. I lace the rrot r at 
the curb with the Ill ,le) al Ill (;icing th , Street 

DO O 6 . ycling! Items need to be loose in the 
Toter and the lid needs to close. 

Co To ii b m ' • 
City of Washington contact for questions on Yard Waste & Recycling: 636-390-1032 

lk 



AND 

WASHINGTON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
FOR THE 

46TH ANNUAL BICYCLE SAl'ETY RODEO 
SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2~22 

REGISTRATION 9:00 ·10:!0AM . . 

WASHINGTON FAIRGROUNDS SWINE PAVILION 
t \/ i j '• • 

•.OBSTACLE COURSE Ages 5-13 (Under 5 can participate) No 
· training whee,s. Bring your bike & helmet or 

receive a helmet at the event. Trophies to top 
winners in each age group and bikes for overall 
girl and boy winners. , 

• SAFETY TOWN Ages 5 and Under 

• CAR SEAT CHECK AND DISTRIBUTION [VENT: 9-11AM 
• HELMET GIVEAWAY ANO HHMET FITTING 
• MISSOURI CHllD ID PROGRAM • BIKE LICENSING 
• BIKE INSPECTIONS AND REPAIR 
• AIR[VA( HHl(OPTER (weather permitting and availability) 

• FIRETRUCK 

ALL 'PARTICIPANTS WILL RECEIVE 
. • A PIZZA SLICE OR HOTDOG 
• COOKIE 
• ONE DRINK 
• POPCORN FOR EVERYONE 
• BALLOON TWISJERS 
ATTENDANCE PRIZES INCLUDE 
BIKES. BIKE ACCESSORIES ANO 
BIKE-THEMEO STORYBOOKS 

' S,naial thankcS to the fotlo.wi11g buslne_sses & individual,s for theil' donations io make thi:s proj.ect a su.~eess, 
BSlJ Printir,i!lJJ Ba~ktihire I l'rltl,wway-Carol Waller, Pm1l /l~· NP.II Redhcige, Di~1~e, Matthe~M & Jessica 80mvic, (ar~iage Carn -
Mn~k & Barb Tre~a<::z, Hkk & Jl:llie l;@Plkenh?erg, 6flry & Peg,, WinzemlJ1i1r~cr Mill 1.ane, Tl~e llhir.m.nmr~ Famlly - PKI (l!eamin@, 
Oomh~o1

:; f>i2:2a, Ho~e l.0Gl!1J0~t251 ancl Hev0l.wti0n CCyd,-i . 

13b 



,lfflflruil~rrm; W; HINGT;;;;RC RECYC=i 
~ E-CYCLE COTATAECTION EVENT 

r 
d 

Event Date & Tune: 
Saturday- o~toher 8'!1 2022 / 8:00 am - 1:00 pm 

•Bain or Shu1e) 
The drop-off event will be held at the Fairgrounds Swine Pavilion at 11 
Fairgrounds St. Use the entrance off of Veterans Drive at the south gate 
going into the Fairgrounds, then exit out of the north Fairground gate 
onto North Park Drive. 

Acceptable Items: 
Computers & components, Office Equipment, Communication Equipment, 
Electronic Equipment, Microwaves, Phones Vacuum Cleaners, (anything 
with a cord or battery, worbing or not worbing). NO albaline batteries, 
light bulbs, media (CD, DVD, Cassette, VHS, Floppy Disb, etc.) 

(j) 
1· - - - - ••• ••••.•••••.••.•.• . . • · • · • · • · -· · · •• - • . • .•• . • . • . • - - - -- -- - -- · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · •• 

t 

: All appliances (washer, dryer, refrigerators, etc.) can be : 
j dropped off at the City of Washington's Recycle Center I 
i (400 Recycle Dr.) during normal operating hours. · 
-- ·-·- -···-···-···-·- -·-----·-·-·-···-·-·-···-·---·- - ··-··· .. .... - .. .... ___ ---~· ---- -· ---- -·--· - ··--

Don't forget to RECYCLE your CELL PHONES! 

CHARGES FOR TV'S & MONITORS 
$5.00 each = CRT MONITORS 
$30.00 each = CRT TV'S 26" or LESS 
$50.00 each = CRT TV'S 27" or GREATER 
$50.00 each = WOOD CONSOLE & TRUE 

BIG SCREEN/PROJECTION TV'S 
$20.00 each = LED/LCD/PLASMA TV'S 

13c. 


	09-06-22 Council Mtg Agenda
	4493_001



